Minutes of the Work Session of the Ogden Valley Planning Commission for October 26, 2021. To join the meeting, please navigate to the following weblink at, https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84258046344, the time of the meeting, commencing at 5:00 p.m.

Ogden Valley Planning Commissioners Present: Chair John Lewis, Chair; Shanna Francis, Vice Chair; Commissioners Jeff Burton, John (Jack) Howell, Trevor Shuman, and Justin Torman.

Absent/Excused: Commissioner Ron Lackey

Staff Present: Charlie Ewert, Principal Planner; Scott Perkes, Planner; Courtlan Erickson, Legal Counsel; Marta Borchert, Office Specialist.

• Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call:

Chair Lewis asked if anyone had any ex parte communication or conflict of interest to declare. No disclosures were made.

1. Approval of Minutes for July 27, August 24, and October 20, 2021.

Commissioner Francis moved to approve the minutes of the July 27, August 24, and October 20, 2021 meetings as presented. Commissioner Torman seconded the motion. Commissioners Lewis, Francis, Burton, Howell, Shuman, and Torman all voted aye. (Motion carried 6-0).

2. Petitions, Applications, and Public Hearings – Administrative items.

2.1 UVM07082021: Request for preliminary approval of Myers Subdivision, a five-lot subdivision in the AV-3 zone, including road dedication, located at approximately 5910 E 1900 N, Eden, UT, 84310. *Staff Presenter: Tammy Aydelotte*

This item was removed from the agenda at the request of the applicant.

3. Petitions, Applications, and Public Hearings – Legislative items.

3.1 ZDA 2021-02: Consideration and action on a proposed amendment to the Snowbasin Master Plan and Development Agreement *Staff Presenter: Steve Burton*

A staff memo from Planner Burton explained Snowbasin Resort received the Destination Recreation Resort-1 zoning designation in January of 2011. During that process, a master plan and development agreement were approved to outline density rights as well as the timing and location of future development at Snowbasin. Snowbasin submitted a request to amend certain sections of the development agreement and the master plan on October 4, 2021. No new density is being proposed as part of this amendment. Snowbasin is proposing an amendment to the development agreement and master plan for several reasons. The memo summarized the changes as follows:

Change #1: The first proposed change is to amend the language of section 3 of the development agreement which currently states the following:

"3. Concept Development Plan

Weber County shall retain the right to approve or deny more specific / detailed conceptual development plans for Areas A, B, F, and G. The concept development plans shall be approved prior to or in conjunction with the first application for site plans subdivision approval within each development area."

The proposed change to section 3 is as follows:

"3. Concept Development Plan

Weber County shall retain the right to approve or deny more specific / detailed conceptual development plans for Areas A, B, F, and G. The concept development plans shall be approved prior to or in conjunction with the first application for site plans subdivision approval within each development area.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Developer and County acknowledge that the Land Use Plan as provided for in Exhibit B to the Agreement, (i) is conceptual in nature and may be further refined by the parties, and (ii) that specifics regarding

October 26, 2021

locations of roads, building areas and product types (e.g. multi-family, mixed-use, single family) may be moved within the areas generally depicted as A, B, F, and G. Unit density for each area (A, B, F, and G) is fixed and may not be transferred between Areas. Concept Development Plans for each area are expected to evolve and be presented in phases in the context of a more detailed master plan for each area. County approvals for these Concept Development Plans will typically be handled at the Staff or Planning Commission level and will not require amendment of the Development Agreement or Land Use Plan."

In this proposed language, the document referred to as *Exhibit B* is page 27 of the original master plan and the concept plan for Area A as shown in the original master plan. This proposed language, if adopted, would allow the county to approve revisions and refinements to the concept plan for each area (A, B, F, and G) as the development occurs, without requiring additional amendments to the master plan or development agreement.

In considering this proposal, staff understands the developer's need to allow changes in the location of roads, buildings, and development types after a concept plan is approved. More specifically, staff understands that each development area takes time to complete, and that the developer will be influenced differently by market forces throughout the time it takes to finalize a development area.

A concept plan for each area is important in a master plan. Concept plans are meant to clarify and provide visual depictions of the county's expectations and allowances of a developer. The proposed amendment to section 3 will still require a concept plan that depicts the future build-out, generally. The proposed changes to section 3 will allow the developer some flexibility regarding the location of roads, buildings, and development types in each area. As stated in the existing development agreement (1st paragraph of Section 3), the developer will still be required to submit specifics of each area to the County, and the County will have the right to approve or deny the more specific plans, based on the general concept plan. There are no proposed changes in the number of units in each area (A, B, F, and G).

Change #2

The second proposed change is to eliminate limitations on commercial density including hotels in the ski areas (Areas A and B) by amending section 5.3 of the current development agreement. Section 5.3 states the following:

Developer acknowledges that units (development rights) will diminish, as development occurs, at a rate of one (1) unit per one (1) residential lot/unit developed and/or at a rate of one (1) unit for every 5,000 square feet of commercial space developed. Commercial area(s) within hotel lobbies and/or conference rooms/facilities are excluded from this calculation. In no case shall commercial density exceed 213,750 square feet of hotel space and 75,000 square feet of retail commercial space in Area A and 80,000 square feet in Area G. Commercial square footage in Area F shall be limited to the area shown as "Mixed Use" on the Land Use Plan. See page 55 of Exhibit B.

The proposed amendment will change section 5 regarding density to the following:

5. Density.

Section 5.1 is amended to provide, in the first sentence, that the total residential and commercial density may be, but shall not exceed, 2,428 units. Further, Section 5.3 of the Development Agreement is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

5.3 As provided in Section 5.1, the Developer shall be entitled to develop the Property with 2,428 units which may include condominiums, townhomes, single-family dwelling units, multi-family dwelling units, hotel rooms, corporate retreats, and other improvement listed and allowed in the DRR-1 Zone. In calculating the number of units hotel rooms shall count as the equivalent of one-third (1/3) of a single-family dwelling unit. For example, a hotel containing 150 rooms and suites would utilize 50 units of density. Condominium units and other dwellings containing lock out rooms that can be separately rented shall be counted as one unit (including the lock out rooms). Lock out rooms shall not be considered to be a separate unit. Commercial development is allowed but does not utilize density units for Areas A and B, as referred to in the Development Agreement. Commercial development in Areas F and G, will utilize density at a rate of one (1) unit for every 5,000 square feet of commercial space developed. Workforce housing units do not count toward unit density. Skier services, equipment and storage buildings, offices, ticket facilities, ski school facilities, lodges and other skier facilities (including food and beverage outlets serving the needs of day skiers) do not count toward unit density. Parking areas, including underground parking within buildings, do not count toward

October 26, 2021

unit density. In no case shall commercial density exceed 80,000 square feet in Area G. Commercial square footage in Area F shall be limited to the area shown as "Mixed Use" on the Land Use Plan.

The following Table 5.3 summarizes the manner of calculating the density utilized for each of the various components planned for development on the Property, and specifies the maximum number of density units allowed in each development area:

TABLE 5.3 DENSITY AND DESCRIPTION

Type of Use	Density Equivalent
Single-family dwelling	1 unit
Multi-family dwelling	1 unit per dwelling unit
Hotel Room	33 unit
Workforce Housing Units	N/A Does not count toward unit density
Skier Services, Lodges, and all Parking	N/A Does not count toward unit density
Commercial Square Footage Areas A and B	N/A Does not count toward unit density
Commercial Square Footage Areas F and G	1 unit per 500 square feet of improved commercial space

Total units per Development Area

Area A – Earl's Village	1,579
Area B – The Forest	502
Area F – The Meadows	22
Area G – The Ranch	325
Total Project Density Permitted	2,428 Units

Note: Total Units allowed in each Area are based on tables in Development Agreement Exhibit B (pages 66 and 68 of the original Development Agreement), and may be amended from time to time with the approval of the County Planning Commission, so long as the total units developed on the Property do not exceed 2,428.

There are two key factors to consider in this proposed change. They are, first, the developer's request to change how hotels are counted toward density, and, second, to no longer count commercial square footage as density units in areas A and B.

Currently, the development agreement assigns hotel units to Area A (the only area with hotels) based on the hotel's commercial square footage. The current calculation is 1 hotel unit for every 5,000 square feet of commercial space developed. Under the current agreement, this gives Area A 43 units (213,750 square feet of commercial space / 5,000 = 43). The developer is proposing to change the calculation to count each hotel unit is 1/3 of a single-family dwelling unit. The developer is proposing this because it is how the hotel units are counted under the development agreement at Powder Mountain. The developer feels that this unit calculation is easier to understand and for all parties (County, Snowbasin, future unit owners) to track.

Existing:

The existing development agreement, Area A has a hotel room (unit) allowance of 43 units. The existing agreement allows a residential unit allowance of 1,529. The existing development agreement allows 15 commercial retail units. The Area A unit count under the current development agreement is 1,587. Proposed

The developer's proposal for Area A is to have a 150-room hotel, which would count toward 50 hotel units, while keeping the allowance of 1,529 residential units. If the commercial units are not counted, as proposed by the developer, the total Area A unit count (residential and hotel only) will be 1,579.

The proposed changes would allow for no cap on the commercial square footage in Areas A and B. The county planning staff and Planning Commission would review any commercial proposals for their compliance with the county Land Use Code as well as the development agreement and master plan. The types of applications that the Planning staff and Planning Commission would review are Commercial Design Review and Subdivisions. Given that the master plan requires the developer to submit

October 26, 2021

concept plans for each area, the county will be able to restrict commercial development in Area A if it is found to be out of compliance with the Area concept plan.

Under the current development agreement Section 5.1, the permitted density to Snowbasin listed is 2,426 units. Under the new commercial density calculation, the proposed density will be 2,428. The new method of counting density clarifies the tables and calculations on Page 68 of 158 of the original development agreement. The developer has stated that the original density should have been 2,428, but that there were errors in the tables on page 68. The developer is prepared to explain the discrepancy to the legislative body, in hopes of receiving the two additional units.

With this proposed amendment, the developer is also requesting approval of a more detailed concept plan for Area A. The existing concept plan for Area A is attached as Exhibit A. The proposed, more detailed concept plan, is included as Exhibit B.

The memo summarized the Planning Commission's considerations:

In reviewing a proposed development agreement, the Planning Commission and County Commission may consider, but shall not be limited to considering, the following:

- 1. Public impacts and benefits.
- 2. Adequacy in the provision of all necessary public infrastructure and services.
- 3. Appropriateness and adequacy of environmental protection measures.
- 4. Protection and enhancements of the public health, welfare, and safety, beyond what is provided by the existing land use ordinances.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the County Commission regarding ZDA 2021-02. This recommendation is based on the following findings:

- 1. A request to amend the "Concept Development Plan" is allowed per the previously approved Zoning Development Agreement.
- 2. The amendment is not detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.
- 3. The proposal will not deteriorate the environment of the general area so as to negatively impact surrounding properties and uses.
- 4. The agreement was considered by the Legislative Body, in conformance with Chapter 102-6 of the County Land Use Code.

Mr. Burton invited the applicant, Jim Hill, forward to present the changes. Mr. Hill presented area plan renderings to illustrate the proposals for each development area within the project.

Vice Chair Francis addressed the hotel density, noting the amendment would allow for the number of hotel rooms to triple. The same would be true for the number of walk-out units. The increase in employee traffic and commercial uses could generate much more traffic in the area and she asked if a new traffic study should be commissioned to evaluate the potential increase. Mr. Hill stated that the traffic study for the area has been addressed in the last few months, but he is not proposing tripling the amount of hotel units; rather, there will be one unit for every 5,000 square feet. Three hotel rooms are equivalent to a three bedroom home or condominium. The increase in hotel rooms will be counted as 50 units, which is an increase compared to past relied upon calculations. Vice Chair Francis asked Mr. Hill if that means he does not foresee the hotel units tripling. Mr. Hill answered yes. He understands the obligation – at each step in the process – to monitor the traffic impacts of the project and a traffic study consultant has been hired for the project. At full buildout, there will be several traffic improvements in the area, but that could be decades in the future. Vice Chair Francis then noted the development agreement speaks to the number of skiers that the various phases of development will generate; the total number of additional skiers could be 2,800 at full build out and she asked if the plans that have been proposed will change that number. Mr. Hill stated he does not recall seeing a skier number in the agreement. Vice Chair Francis stated it is contained in one of the exhibits to the agreement. Mr. Hill stated that number seems low considering the number of units and commercial improvements; he hopes there will be more than 2,800 additional skiers. Vice Chair Francis stated that she believes the original traffic study was based upon the 2,800 additional skier numbers.

Commissioner Burton stated it seems to him that the plan is aimed at enticing skiers to visit the area for prolonged stays. Mr. Hill stated that is correct; he wants to offer overnight lodging that skiers could use for one or multiple days. The ideal stay would be one week. Commissioner Burton asked how soon the employee housing will be constructed. Mr. Hill stated that some

October 26, 2021

employee housing is included in the 'Club Med' hotel component of the project, which will be the earlies phase of employee housing. The development agreement includes an obligation for 29 employee housing units at a minimum, but he has not determined the phasing for that component of the project. Attracting employees is particularly challenging right now, but he is hopeful that providing housing will be attractive for potential employees.

High level discussion among the Commission and Mr. Hill centered on the desired commercial uses at the project site; there were several comparisons drawn between the proposed project and developments in Park City.

Commissioner Torman referenced Section 5.3 of the current development agreement; he asked how the restriction of one unit per every 5,000 square feet is problematic for the developer. Mr. Hill stated that restriction regulates the number of housing units compared to the amount of commercial development. Planning Director Grover stated it is not uncommon to include a limitation on residential units until a defined amount of commercial square footage is built. Mr. Hill stated that it can be difficult to encourage commercial development in this environment and he is hopeful that will be reduced higher up on the mountain near the actual ski resort, but it will be adhered to lower on the mountain near the more populated areas of the valley where commercial development may be more viable.

Discussion then shifted to conservation easements on the valley floor that will be funded with a portion of revenues generated in the project area. Mr. Hill stated he cannot think of any way that the proposed development agreement amendments will directly impact any major components of the development agreement; however, the project has been stagnant for 10 years and he is now resurrecting long range plans.

Vice Chair Francis moved to open the public hearing. Commissioner Torman seconded the motion; all voted in favor.

Chair Lewis invited public input and asked speakers to keep their comments to two minutes.

Ron Gleeson stated he lives in unincorporated Weber County; he was involved in original discussions of this project back in 2010-2011. Snow Basin was nice enough to have a small group of residents involved. There was a great deal of time spent determining the appropriate transfer of development units from the valley floor to the resort area, the bonus density, and the ratio of commercial to residential space in the project. There is a table in the packet materials that illustrates those items. He personally believes that the developer is seeking an increase in density; they may not be requesting additional residential density, but they are requesting an increase in commercial development density as well as employee housing. There is currently employee housing on the mountain and while it has been said that the existing housing is seasonal in nature, there are employees that live there all year. He believes employee housing should be counted towards the density of the project because the units will put a demand on resources. He has been a seasonal employee at Ski Basin for the past 12 years and he supports the resort, but he is simply representing his own thoughts. He feels employee housing is important and needed. He then noted that on September 27, 2021, Snow Basin submitted an application to locate five permeant yurts near the Olympic finish area of the resort; there would be parking and all utilities at the location and he asked if the yurts will be counted as employee housing or other types of residential units. He attended the work session and read the minutes of the on-site discussion of the project and there was a gentleman who spoke a lot about sustainability and heating/cooling of the buildings. One thing that Ogden Valley residents consider in terms of sustainability is dark skies and he hopes that the developers are aware of those issues and embrace that mindset. He asked if the County's lighting standards will only apply to new construction at the resort or if it will be applied retroactively to existing development. He referenced the proposed changes to Section 5.3 of the development agreement, noting there is a cap on density that the developer would like to remove in order to build whatever they want. He stated that this will increase traffic as well as the demand on infrastructure. In 2011 when the entire plan was first assembled, one of the objectives the developer expressed was to have a majority of the day users enter the resort on the strawberry side; he asked if that is still the objective and, if not, he wondered how the changes will impact traffic patterns on the roads leading to the resort.

Kurt Linford thanked the Snow Basin developers for their willingness to involve the community when they first developed the plan for continued development of the resort. He feels the original plan is very good and he echoed Mr. Gleeson's comments about the transfer of development rights from the valley floor to the mountain. There was a lot of discussion about 'lock-outs' and each lock out representing a portion of a transfer of development rights. He encouraged the Commission to preserve the commitments that have been made in the past, rather than approving amendments that would jeopardize the precious resource that is the Snow Basin mountain. He noted there was a 'handshake' agreement regarding a real estate transaction fee

October 26, 2021

and that one percent of that fee would be used as a funding mechanism for open space preservation on the valley floor. This would help to differentiate Snow Basin from other ski resorts that are located very close to very dense residential areas. He encouraged the Commission to research the historical discussions about those issues and determine if the amendments that have been requested are truly appropriate and in keeping with the spirit of that original agreement.

Commissioner Burton moved to close the public hearing. Commissioner Torman seconded the motion; all voted in favor.

Mr. Burton stated he is not prepared to answer questions about the entirety of the development agreement, and he believes the same is true for Mr. Hill and his partners; rather, they are prepared to answer questions about the requested amendments that have been presented to the Commission tonight. He stated there are no proposed changes to the reinvestment fee referenced by Mr. Linford. He believes the input that has been provided is valid, but many of the points raised do not relate to any of the amendments that Mr. Hill has requested. He then presented an original exhibit from the original development agreement that is intended to illustrate how density is calculated; this formula is very complicated and confusing, and he is unsure why it was written in the manner it was. The original amount of commercial square feet initially envisioned was 213,750; when that number is divided by 5,000, the result is 42.75 and that number was rounded up to 43 units for Area A. One of the intentions of the development agreement amendments is to make sense of these past formulas.

Commissioner Shuman asked if the agreement includes a maximum number of units or square footage for the hotel space; in theory, there could be more hotel rooms because the density of hotel rooms is considered to be lower than traditional residential. Mr. Burton stated that for Area A, the maximum number of hotel rooms allowed is 150. He presented the Master Plan rendering to identify the location of hotel units and multi-family units; Area A appears to be the only area in which hotel units will be located. He also presented an exhibit provided by the applicant that illustrates their exact proposal; the exhibit included a table that indicates the total units in each development area. Per the development agreement, Weber County will retain the right to approve or deny more specific or detailed conceptual plans for areas A, B, F, and G. The concept development plans shall be approved prior to or in conjunction with the first application for site plan/subdivision approval within each development area. The applicant has requested that language be amended to read as follows:

"Weber County shall retain the right to approve or deny more specific/detailed conceptual development plans for Areas A, B, F, and G. The concept development plans shall be approved prior to or in conjunction with the first application for site plans/subdivision approval within each development area.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Developer and County acknowledge that the Land Use Plan as provided for in Exhibit B to the Agreement, (i) is conceptual in nature and may be further refined by the parties, and (ii) that specifics regarding locations of roads, building areas and product types (e.g. multi-family, mixed-use, single family) may be moved within the areas generally depicted as A, B, F, and G. Unit density for each area (A, B, F, and G) is fixed and may not be transferred between Areas. Concept Development Plans for each area are expected to evolve and be presented in phases in the context of a more detailed master plan for each area. County approvals for these Concept Development Plans will typically be handled at the Staff or Planning Commission level and will not require amendment of the Development Agreement or Land Use Plan."

The intent is for Snow Basin to avoid a legislative process for certain amendments and the Planning Commission should determine if they are comfortable with that change. This led to discussion and debate regarding the proposed amendments and if they are in keeping with the original spirit of the master plan and development agreement for the project. There was a focus on whether hotel units should be included in the calculation of residential or commercial units to determine overall density. Legal Counsel Erickson stated that while he was not part of the original negotiation of agreements for the project in 2011, he does believe that the current proposal conforms with the County's Land Use Ordinance. When calculating the maximum number of permitted units for development in the subject zoning designation, commercial areas within hotel lobbies and conference rooms/facilities are excluded. There is flexibility in the code to approve alternative development standards, so it is legal for the developer to request a deviation from the ordinance and the original development agreement. Mr. Burton stated that while the ordinance does read as Mr. Erickson indicated, the developer is including hotel rooms in their density calculation. This led to debate among the Commission about whether hotel units should be counted towards the commercial or residential density in the project, with Commissioner Burton noting that hotel rooms should not be specified as a different use than commercial. Mr. Erickson stated that is correct unless the developer is specifically included as part of the commercial uses for the overall project in the development agreement. Mr. Grover added that he feels that the proposed changes to the

October 26, 2021

development agreement may actually be a bit more restrictive regarding the hotel use in the project. Additionally, it is consistent with the development of the Powder Mountain area.

Chair Lewis asked Mr. Burton to restate staff's recommendation regarding this application. Mr. Burton stated that as each area is developed, the County has the ability to approve or deny development plans. He feels this provides the County with an appropriate level of control over the project. He summarized the changes for the specific plan for Area A, Earl's Village. It includes single family, multi family, condominiums, and mixed use. Staff recommends that a maximum hotel density be specified for Area A, and that can be negotiated as the project moves forward to the County Commission. He concluded staff recommends the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the County Commission.

Vice Chair Francis asked staff to respond to Mr. Gleeson's question about the yurts that are located on the Snow Basin property. Mr. Burton stated that there are seasonal yurts on the property, as well as a few temporary trailers for ski patrol use during the ski season. Mr. Hill added that there was formerly a large structure referred to the 'hill house' in Area A; this was used as seasonal housing for employees. A few years ago, it was replaced with a few manufactured homes and living facilities for the ski patrol. There are also apartments on the strawberry side that are used as seasonal living quarters for employees. Mr. Burton stated it is staff's position that these units are temporary in nature and the units will not count towards the workforce housing calculation. He added that a yurt is listed as a permitted land use for the Destination, Recreation, Resort (DRR-1) zone; however, he considers them to be temporary in nature and they also will not be counted towards the total number of residential units that will be allowed in the project.

Chair Lewis called for a motion.

Commissioner Burton moved to forward a positive recommendation to the County Commission for ZDA 2021-02, proposed amendment to the Snowbasin Master Plan and Development Agreement, based on the findings and subject to the conditions listed in the staff report. Commissioner Howell seconded the motion.

Commissioner Howell stated that he was a member of the Planning Commission when the development agreement was first approved by the County; he recalled studies performed by a consultant hired by the Holding Group in which they considered sensitive lands and the footprint of Snow Basin and building plans. The study report was accepted by the County at that time.

Chair Lewis called for a vote on the motion. Commissioners Lewis, Francis, Burton, Howell, Shuman, and Torman all voted aye. (Motion carried 6-0).

3.2 ZTA 2019-03: Consideration and action on a zoning text amendment to add the Eden Mixed-Use Village Zoning to the County Land Use Code. *Staff Presenters: Steve Burton*

A staff memo from Planner Burton explained this is a County initiated proposal to adopt an ordinance establishing the Eden Village Mixed-Use Zone. The 2016 Ogden Valley General Plan provides goals and policies that state the County should adopt specific area plans for the commercial villages including the Old Town Eden and New Town Eden area. This new zoning ordinance will ensure that development within the Eden Villages focuses on building architecture and street design to result in pedestrian friendly retail.

In November of 2018, planning staff met with stakeholders in the Eden commercial areas to discuss the idea of form-based zoning in Eden. The feedback from the stakeholders was that the Old and New Town Eden areas should have stricter development standards that require enhanced building "main street" architecture, similar to the Eden blacksmith shop. In addition to enhanced architecture, the stakeholders suggested a street design that focuses on pedestrians, cyclists, and retail customers.

The proposed Eden Village Mixed-Use zone requires street front buildings to have a façade that has specific architecture, materials, and colors. The Old Town Eden area will have street front façades with architecture, materials, and colors that resemble western main street buildings from the late 1890s to the early 1910s. Currently, the blacksmith shop and the general store meet these requirements with either brick or wood fronts that hide gable roofs and provide other important architectural detail. The New Town Eden area will have agrarian style buildings, resembling historic barns that will also have specific architectural detail.

The public streets in these areas will be wide enough to support spacious pedestrian sidewalks (approximately 14 feet), bike lanes (approximately five feet), and on street parking (either angled or parallel). Traffic calming measures including street trees and intersection bulb outs will be required. The width of drive lanes will be the county public works standard of 12 feet.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation of ZTA 2019-03 to the County Commission. This recommendation is based on the following findings:

1. The proposed subdivision amendment conforms to the Ogden Valley General Plan.

Mr. Burton reviewed the staff memo and facilitated a review of the ordinance text and optional development concepts; cross sections for streets and alleyways; building elevations; and architectural standards and themes. There was high level discussion among the Commission regarding the relationship between existing development in the area and potential future commercial developments.

Chair Lewis indicated he feels staff has done a great job at carefully considering the present conditions in the area subject to the zoning ordinance and crafting a new zoning ordinance that takes those conditions into consideration. He stated he understands the concerns of property owners in the area, but noted that if there is no direction for future development, the end result could be a 'hodge podge' of development and uses that are not cohesive. The proposed zoning ordinance will help to facilitate cohesive development that is charming and has its own identity. He stated creating a direction may be difficult, but it is important for preserving the value of this area and facilitating quality development. He then excused himself from the meeting at 6:56 p.m.

The Commission engaged in discussion with staff regarding interest among property owners to pursue the types of village developments envisioned in the zoning ordinance. Mr. Burton stated he feels the ordinance provides property owners an additional tool to develop for developing their property in a fashion that is consistent with the General Plan for the area. There has been a great deal of public and property owner input in the development of the proposed ordinance and development concepts.

Vice Chair Francis called for a motion to open the public hearing.

Commissioner Torman moved to open the public hearing. Commissioner Howell seconded the motion; all voted in favor.

Kirk Langford stated he lives in Eden fairly close to the area in which the new proposed zoning designation would be placed; he has met with Planning staff and other stakeholders, and he has some reservation about the density that is allowed in the zone. Additionally, there are no clear guidelines or direction, which can be harmful to property rights in the area. He does not want to restrict property owners or developers interested in building in the village area, but he feels guidelines will provide a sense of visual direction for creating a community. Since the original plan was developed, there has been an update to the General Plan in 2016 and there was a huge turnout of residents interested in being part of that update process. The General Plan had general support from the community and he feels the County is moving in the right direction towards implementing the Plan by adopting the zoning ordinance; it is necessary to implement architectural guidelines, or the County will end up with an area that is developed with no guidelines. He stated there are some details to be worked out, such as overall density and how to use a transfer of development rights, but the worst-case scenario would be for developers to move into the area and start proposing projects that ruin private property rights and hinder buildout that is in line with the General Plan. For that reason, he feels it is appropriate to adopt the proposed zoning ordinance to help facilitate the type of development envisioned in the General Plan.

Commissioner Burton moved to close the public hearing. Commissioner Shuman seconded the motion; all voted in favor.

Commissioner Torman inquired as to the timeline of implementing the zoning ordinance if it is adopted. Mr. Burton stated that is dependent upon the actions of the County Commission; if they approve the zone, they can then initiate a legislative process to rezone properties in the area that has been identified as being suitable for the land use. There would be a public process associated with that type of action.

Commissioner Shuman moved to forward a positive recommendation to the County Commission for ZTA 2019-03, zoning text amendment to add the Eden Mixed-Use Village Zoning to the County Land Use Code, based on the findings and subject to the

October 26, 2021

conditions listed in the staff report. Commissioner Howell seconded the motion. Commissioners Lewis, Francis, Howell, Shuman, and Torman all voted aye. (Motion carried 5-1). Commissioner Burton stated his opposing vote is based upon his concerns about transportation layout within the village area and the zoning ordinance being too strict in mandating the esthetics of development in the village area. He stated the esthetics are not required for the health, safety, and welfare of the community.

Mr. Burton addressed Commissioner Burton's concerns; he understands his position, but noted that these are issues that were evaluated by the steering committee and for which they provided a favorable recommendation.

4. Public Comment for Items not on the Agenda

There were no public comments.

5. Remarks from Planning Commissioners

There were no additional remarks from Planning Commissioners.

6. Planning Director Report

Mr. Grover thanked the Commission for their service to the community. He then noted that according to State Law, each Commissioner is required to have four hours of land use training per year; this can be accomplished through several different training opportunities, but he needs to track the amount of training each Commissioner has engaged in. He stated staff will formulate a proposal regarding a training program for the Commission in the coming year, but invited feedback or suggestions from the body.

7. Remarks from Legal Counsel

Mr. Erickson added to Mr. Grover's report; he noted that the State Law referenced by Mr. Grover was enacted in the last Legislative Session and the County must comply in the coming year.

Meeting Adjourned: The meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. Respectfully Submitted,

Weber County Planning Commission